10.

11.

CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
REGULAR SCHEDULED PUBLIC MEETING

ORANGE PARK, FLORIDA
June 17, 2015

AGENDA
CHAIR CHIP DOBSON
VICE-CHAIR REV. BILL RANDALL
TREASURER MATT CARLTON
SECRETARY VIRGINIA HALL

Welcome/Call to Order 3:00 pm
Roll Call

Invocation

Approval of March 25, 2015 Minutes

Action taken at Committee Meetings
DEVCOM
Strategic Vision Planning

Comments from the Public

Treasurer’s Report
First Atlantic Bank CDs / Compass Bank Money Market
Audit Review by Magers & Associates — Mary Ann Magers

Chair’s Report

IRB Opportunity

Gubernatorial Appointments Update
Financial Disclosure

Coleman & Associates Contract

Staff Report

Grants Update

Upcoming Conferences
Challenge Enterprises Update

Attorney’s Report
Economic Development Report

Economic Development Plan RFP Response Report
1

Chip Dobson
Josh Cockrell
Rev. Randall
Chip Dobson

Chip Dobson

Chip Dobson

Matt Carlton

Chip Dobson

Josh Cockrell

Grady Williams

Bill Garrison




12, Old Business/New Business/Board Comments Chip Debson
Economic Development Plan Next Steps
Adoption of Strategic Vision Plan
Update on Transportation Project Proposed by Rev. Randall

13. Adjournment Chip Dobson

Dates of Upcoming CCDA Meetings:
July 15,2015 at 4:00pm

September 16, 2015 at 4:00pm

NOTE: Items 4, 5 and 7 through 14, above, are subject to discussion, consideration, and
action by the Board of the Clay County Development Authority.

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Pursuant to F.S. s. 286.0114 (2013) /, and Clay County
Development Authority policy], speakers intending to offer public comment must complete a
provided speaker’s card, turn in the same to the recording secretary for the public meeting,
and may address the Board when recognized by the Chair of the meeting with their public
comments for a period of not more than three (3) minutes. The Chair of the meeting has
the authority and discretion to make special provisions for a group or faction
spokesperson. The Chair of the meeting has all requisite authority and discretion to
maintain orderly conduct or proper decorum of the public meeting.



CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
MINUTES

March 25, 2015

Present: Chip Dobson, Bill Randall, Matt Carlton, Russell Buck, Greg Clary, Debbie
Ricks {via phone), Grady Williams, Counsel

Absent: Joe Mobley, Matt Welch, Paz Patel, Virginia Hall
Guests: Bill Garrison, Ken Willey, Tresa Calfee, Brian Knight, Elizabeth Adams
Staff: Josh Cockrell

Call to Order: Chair Chip Dobson called the Clay County Development Authority
(“CCDA") Board meeting to order at 4:00 PM.

Invocation: Bill Randall provided the invocation.

Approval of February 25, 2015 Minutes: Greg Clary motioned to accept the
minutes. Motion seconded, and passed unanimously.

Action taken at Committee Meetings: None
Public Comment: None

Treasurer’s Report: Matt Carlton reviewed the financial reports for February
2015. Josh Cockrell stated that after the financial report was generated, the CCDA
received a check for reimbursement for one of the Camp Blanding grants and that it
will be reflected in the next report. Russell Buck motioned to accept the report.
Motion seconded, and passed unanimously.

Staff Report: Josh Cockrell recommended that the Board approves the draft
Economic Development Plan RFP and offers its full support to the Clay Economic
Development Corporation as it procures the RFP. CCDA will assist financially in the
payment of the economic development plan, but until we receive responses, we will
not know how much money we will commit at this time. Josh Cockrell stated that
economic development plans typically cost between $50-100k. Bill Garrison stated
that he has submitted an application for a DRG grant to receive funding to help pay
for the plan. Josh stated that the Clay BCC has voted to appropriate $20k towards
the plan. The response deadline for the RFPs is May 8t. Following that date, the
responses will be reviewed. Greg Clary asked how the BCC is tied to the RFP other
than their investment. Bill Garrison stated that the BCC is the authority to conduct
economic development in Clay County and that they have designated CCEDC to

1



conduct economic development on their behalf. Debbie Ricks stated that by the BCC
committing funds to the plan indicates their confidence in both the CCEDC and
CCDA. Matt Carlton brought up the issue with impact fees and the moratorium that
is set to expire. He believes it should be reviewed as part of the RFP scope. Josh
Cockrell stated that it can be reviewed as disincentives that may harm economic
development. The RFP scope will be revised to provide an analysis of incentives and
disincentives. Greg Clary made a motion to approve the RFP with changes. It was
seconded and passed unanimously.

Economic Development Report: Bill Garrison provided an update on the Global
Cities Initiative that CCEDC is participating in. He also stated that he believes the
BCC, CCDA, and CCEDC is working well together. The CCEDC is conducting a market
study that will include rebranding of CCEDC. He also provided updates on projects
that he is working on.

Brian Knight provided a presentation on the income distribution in the county. It is
most dense in Fleming Island, more so than in Ponte Vedra. He then discussed the
opportunity to have a co-located facility that would be termed the Entrepreneur
Epicenter (E?) and would house CCEDC, CCDA, Small Business Development Center,
Co-working space, Accelerator, Incubator, Clay Chamber, and a visitor’s center. He
stated that CCEDC is applying for a grant to receive funds to assist in developing an
accelerator in the county, similar to what has been done in Collier County and in
other states. Potentially, the CCDA could build a facility or purchase a building to
house this concept and lease the spaces to generate a revenue stream.

Chair's Report: Chip Dobson stated that the strategic vision plan is being drafted
and asked that any comments be directed to Josh Cockrell so that he can incorporate
the revisions. In order to move the plan forward, Chip proposed that a committee be
formed to complete the draft. Greg Clary, Russell Buck, Matt Carlton, Debbie Ricks
and Virginia Hall were appointed to serve on the Strategic Vision Plan Committee. A
4-hour meeting was scheduled on April 29 at 12pm for the committee. Josh stated
that during the committee meeting, the draft will be revised and goals and
objectives defined. Russell Buck shared concerns in regards to the CCDA not being
mentioned at EDC functions like it once was. Josh stated that he is having
conversations with Bill regarding this.

Chip Dobson stated that there are several applications that have been submitted for
appointment to CCDA as well as reappointment.

The CCDA’s next regularly scheduled meeting is May 20. Understanding that the
Strategic Vision Planning Committee will need to meet in addition to updates from
DEVCOM Committee and the review of the Economic Development Plan RFP
responses, it was recommended that the meeting be moved back to May 27 at 3pm.
DEVCOM Committee will meet on April 29 at 4pm.

Attorney’s Report: None



0ld Business: None

New Business: Matt Carlton brought up the impact fee and stated that CCDA
should take a look at the issue at a future meeting.

The next CCDA Board meeting will be on May 27, 2015 at 3:00P.M.

Adjourned: 5:50 P.M.

DATES OF UPCOMING CCDA MEETINGS:
May 20, 2015 at 4:00pm— RESCHEDULED FOR MAY 27, 2015 at 3:00pm

May 27, 2015 at 3:00pm
July 15, 2015 at 4:00pm
September 16, 2015 at 4:00pm



COLEMAN & ASSOCIATES

Certified Public Accounting Fiem

ACCOUNTANTS' COMPILATION REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Clay County Development Authority
Orange Park, FL

We have compiled the accompanying government-wide bhalance sheet of Clay County
Development Authority (2 governmental organization) as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, and the
related statements of revenues and expenses for the one month and six months then ended,
and the accompanying supplementary statement of revenues and expenses — budget vs. actual
- current month and current year to date.

We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance about whether the financial statements are in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
for designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements.

Our responsibility is to conduct the compilation in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The objective of a compilation is to assist management in presenting financial information in the
form of financial statements without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there
are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements.

Management has elected to omit the management discussion and analysis, the governmentai
fund financial statements and substantially ali of the disclosures required by generally accepted
accounting principles. If the omitted management discussion and analysis, governmental fund
financial statements and disclosures were included in the financial statements, they might
influence the user’s conclusions about the Organization's finandal position and changes in net
assets. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed
about such matters.

We are not independent with respect to the Clay County Development Authority.

Lolgnan b Rsoocia®es Cop fin
May 14, 2015

P.O. Box 8279 - Fleming Island, Florida 32006 » {P) 904-284-9481 » (F) 904-284-9482

www.colemanandassociatescpa.com




Clay County Development Authority

GOVERNMENTWIDE BALANCE SHEET
As of March 31, 2015

TOTAL

AS OF MAR 31,2015 AS OF MAR 31, 2014 (PY)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
100002 First Atlantic Checking - 1484 494,768 78,295
100004 First Atlantic (CD) 50,200 50,101
100005 First Atlantic 2 (CD) 49,998 49,998
100007 Investment - Florida Prime - A 148,210 142,800
100008 Investment - Florida Prime -B G 4,998
100010 Unrealized Gainfl.oss Fund B G 1,167
Total 100008 Investment - Florida Prime - B i) 6,165
100016 Compass Bank Money Market - Pub 175,384 175,322
100018 First Atlantic Bank MMKT -1493 518,666 867,902
100025 Fifth-Third CD 75428 76,428
100026 Fifth-Third 2 (CD) 76,428 76,428
Total Bank Accounts $1,591,082 $1,623,439
Accounts Receivable
115002 Revenue Receivable 326,287 574
Total Accounts Receivable $326,287 $574
Other current assets
115000 Accrued Interest Receivable 755 755
115001 Loan to Clay Co. Chamber of Com 65174 06,412
1499 Undeposited Funds 68,094 0
Total Other current assets $134,923 $97,167
Total Current Assets $2,052,302 $1,721,180
Fixed Assets
162950 Leasehold Improvements - Devcom 28842 28,842
166800 Office Equipment 58,348 58,348
167900 Accum BPepreciation (85,583) (85,583)
Total Fixed Assets $1,607 $1,607
Other Assets
1160000 Note Receivable - St Johns Coun 36,000 48,000
162900 Equity Interest - Devcom 198,997 198 997
163000 License Agreement - Big League 0 450,000
Total Other Assets $234,997 $696,997
TOTAL ASSETS $2,288,9086 $2,419,783
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
200000 Accounts Payabile 0 17,882

Read Accountants Compilation Report



Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
220000 Security Deposits
Dept of Revenue Payable

Sales Tax Payable

Total Dept of Revenue Payable
Total Cther Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
272000 Net Asset Balance
280000 Invest in Fixed Assets

32000 Retained Earnings
Netincome

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

$0 $17,882
2,788 2,788
168 8,302
0 (8.150)
168 151
$2,956 $2,939
$2,956 $20,821
$2,956 $20,821
2,256,489 1,908,994
1,607 349,102
54,474 220,987
(26,620) (80,121)
$2,285,950 $2,398,962
$2,288,906 $2,419,783

Read Accountants Compilation Report



Clay County Development Authority
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

March 2015
TOTAL
MAR 2015 OCT 2014 -MAR 2015 (YTD)
Income
331000 Grant Revenues 35,747
362000 Rents & Royalties 2401 14,117
369000 Miscellangous Revenues 405 2,152
Total Income $2,808 $52,017
Gross Profit $2,808 $52,017
Expenses
512500 Funding to CEDC 5,000
513300 Professional Fees 600 8,244
513305 Administration Contract iGS 4,500 27,000
513440 Liability Insurance 1,030
513460 Devcom LLP Expense 1,650 8,800
513480 Special Promotions 200
513491 Miscellaneous 0
513484 Dues & Subscriptions 300
513510 Office and Operating Expenses 302 1,718
555000 Grant Expense 25,246
Total Expenses $7.052 $78,638
Net Operating Income 5§ (4,246) $ (26,620)
Net Income $ (4,248) $ (26,620)

Read Accountants Compilation Report



Clay County Development Authority

BUDGET VS. ACTUALS: CCDA -FY15 - LAST MONTH
March 2015

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET

income
362000 Rents & Royalties
362003 Tocoi Engineering lic 870 747 (773 90.00 %
362005 Florida Fire Protection 1,061 1,080 1 100.00 %
362007 Rent - Tomlinson & Co 670 (670}
362008 Rent Branch Agency Solutions LL 670 670
Total 362000 Rents & Royalties 2,401 2,477 {76) 97.00 %
369000 Miscellaneous Revenues
361000 Interest Earned 148 250 (102) 59.00 %
369002 Interest Income from CCC 184 177 7 104.00 %
369003 Commissions Earned 4 0 4
369005 Miscellanecus Revenue 69 0 69
Total 368000 Miscellaneous Revenues 405 427 (22) 95.00 %
Total Income $2,806 $2,904 % {98) 97.00 %
Gross Profit $2,806 $2,904 $ (98) 87.00 %
Expenses

512000 Funding to CCC 25 (25)

513300 Professional Fees

513310 Attorney 600 500 0 100.00 %

513320 Auditor 2,000 (2,000)

513321 Accounting 325 (328)

Total 513300 Professional Fees 600 2,925 (2,325) 21.00 %
513305 Administration Contract IGS 4,500 4,500 0 100.00 %
513440 Liability Insurance
513443 Devcom Office 500 (500}
Total 513440 Liability Insurance 0 500 (500} 0
§13460 Devcom LLP Expense 1,650 1,650 0 - 100.00 %
513490 Business Meeting 25 {25)
513510 Office and Operating Expenses 0 0

513512 Office Supplies 186 0 186

513514 Misc Office Expense 400 (400)

513516 Telephone 59 70 (12) 84.0C %

513518 Website expenses 200 {200}

513519 Travel 300 (300}

513520 Conferences 500 (500}

513521 Advertising & Marketing 58 75 17) 77.00%
Total 513510 Office and Operating Expenses 307 1,545 (1,243) 20.00 %
560000 Contingencies / Legal 425 (425)

Total Expenses $7,052 $11,5895 $ (4,543) 61.00 %
Net Operating Income $(4,248) $(8,691) $4,445 49.00 %

Read Accountants Compilation Report



Net Income ${4,248) $(8,691) $4.445 48.00 %

Read Accountants Compilaticn Repori



COLEMAN & ASSOCIATES

Certified Public Accounting Firm

ACCOUNTANTS' COMPILATION REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Clay County Development Authority
Orange Park, FL

We have compiled the accompanying government-wide balance sheet of Clay County
Development Authority (a governmental organization) as of Aprit 30, 2015 and 2014, and the
related statements of revenues and expenses for the one month and seven months then ended,
and the accompanying supplementary statement of revenues and expenses — budget vs. actual
— current month and current year to date.

We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance about whether the financial statements are in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
for designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements.

Our responsibility is to conduct the compilation in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The objective of a compilation is to assist management in presenting financial information in the
form of financial statements without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there
are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements.

Management has elected to omit the management discussion and analysis, the governmental
fund financial statements and substantially all of the disclosures required by generally accepted
accounting principles. If the omitted management discussion and analysis, governmental fund
financial statements and disclosures were included in the financial statements, they might
influence the user’s conclusions about the Organization’s financial position and changes in net
assets. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed
about such matters.

We are not independent with respect to the Clay County Development Authority.

Coleman  Resociates CPﬂ firm
May 14, 2015

P.O. Box 8279 - Fleming Island, Florida 32006 » {F} 904-284-9481 » {F} 904-284-9482

www.colemanandassociatescpa.com




Clay County Development Authority

GOVERNMENTWIDE BALANCE SHEET
As of April 30, 2015

TOTAL

AS OF APR 30,2015 AS OF APR 30, 2014 (PY)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts

1000602 First Atlantic Checking - 1484 80,456 70,858
100004 First Atiantic (CD) 50,200 50,101
100005 First Atiantic 2 {CD) 49,998 49,998
100007 Investment - Florida Prime - A 149,233 142 977
100008 Investment - Florida Prime - B G 4,840
100010 Unrealized GainfLoss Fund B G 1,167
Totai 100008 Investment - Florida Prime - B o 6,007
106016 Compass Bank Money Market - Pub 175,388 175,333
100018 First Atlantic Bank MMKT -1493 893,738 968,021
100025 Fifth-Third CD 76,428 76,428
100026 Fifth-Third 2 (CD) 76,428 76,428
Total Bank Accounts $1,660,880 $1,616,151
Accounts Receivable
115002 Revenue Receivable 326,287 574
Total Accounts Receivable $326,287 $574
Other current assets
115000 Accrued Interest Receivable 755 755
115001 Loan to Clay Co. Chamber of Com 50,458 93615
Total Other current assets $60,213 $94,370
Total Current Assets $2,047,379 $1,711,095
Fixed Assets
162950 Leasehold improvements - Devcom 28,842 28,842
168500 Office Equipment 58,348 58,348
1687900 Accum Depreciation {85,583) (85,583)
Total Fixed Assets $1,607 $1,607
Other Assets
1160000 Note Receivable - 5t Johns Coun 36,600 48,000
162800 Equity Interest - Devcom 198,097 198,887
1630600 License Agreement - Big League G 450,000
Total Other Assets $234,987 $696,997
TOTAL ASSETS $2,283,983 $2,409,699
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payabie
200000 Accounts Payable 94 13,475
Total Accounts Payable $84 $13,475

Read Accountants Compitation Repodt



Other Current Liabilities
220000 Security Deposits
Dept of Revenue Payable

Sales Tax Payable

Total Dept of Revenue Payable
Total Other Current Liahilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Equity
272000 Net Asset Balance
280000 Invest in Fixed Assets
32000 Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

2,788 2,788
168 8,457
1) (8,306)
168 151
$2,956 $2,939
$3,050 $16,415
$3,050 $16,415
2 256,489 1,908,994
1,607 349,102
54,474 220,987
(31,637) (85,7909)
$2,280,933 $2,393,284
$2,283,883 $2,409,699

Read Accountants Compilation Report



Clay County Development Authority
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Aprii 2015
TOTAL
APR 2015 OCT2014-APR 2015 (YTD)
income
331000 Grant Revenues 35,747
362000 Rents & Royaities 2401 16,518
368000 Miscellaneous Revenues 640 2,792
Total Income $3,041 $55,088
Gross Profit $3,041 $55,058
Expenses
512500 Funding to CEDC 5000
513300 Professional Fees 1,700 9,944
513305 Administration Contract IGS 4 500 31,500
5134440 Liability Insurance 1,030
513460 Devcom LLP Expense 1,650 11,550
513480 Special Promotions 200
513491 Miscellaneous 0
513494 Dues & Subscriptions 55 355
513510 Office and Operating Expenses 152 1,870
559000 Grant Expense 25,246
Total Expenses $8,057 $86,695
Net Operating Income $ (5,017) $ (31,637)
Net Income $(5,017) ${31,637)

Read Accountants Compilation Report



Clay County Development Authority
BUDGET VS, ACTUALS: CCDA -FY15 - LAST MONTH

April 2015
TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OFBUDGET
Income
362000 Rents & Royalties
362003 Tocoi Engineering lic 6870 747 {77) 90.00 %
362005 Florida Fire Protection 1,061 1,060 1 100.00 %
362007 Rent - Tomlinson & Co 670 (670)
362008 Rent Branch Agency Solutions LL 670 870
Total 362000 Rents & Royalties 2,401 2477 {76) 97.00 %
369000 Miscellaneous Revenues
361000 Interest Earned 241 250 (&) 96.00 %
369002 Interest Income from CCC 399 169 230 236.00 %
Total 365000 Miscellaneous Revenues 640 4149 221 153.00 %
TotalIncome $3,041 $2,896 $145 105.00 %
Gross Profit $3,041 $2,896 $145 105.00 %
Expenses
512000 Fundingto CCC 25 {25)
512500 Funding to CEDC 2,500 (2,500}
513300 Professional Fees
513310 Attorney 600 500 0 100.00 %
513321 Accounting 1,100 325 775 338.00 %
Total 513300 Professional Fees 1,700 925 775 184.00 %
513305 Administration Contract IG5 4,500 4500 4] 100.00 %
513460 Devecom LLP Expense 1,650 1,650 0 100.00 %
513430 Business Meeting 25 (25)
513493 Service Charges 25 (25)
513494 Dues & Subscriptions 55 0 55
513510 Office and Operating Expenses ¢ 0
513516 Telephone 59 70 (12) 84.00 %
513521 Advertising & Marketing 94 0 94
Total 513510 Office and Operating Expenses 162 70 82 217.00 %
560000 Contingencies / Legal 425 (425}
Total Expenses $8,057 $10,145 $ {2,088) 79.00 %
Net Operating Income $(5,017) $(7,249) $2,232 69.00 %
Net Income $(5,017) $(7,249) $2,232 68.00 %




Clay County Development Authority

BUDGET VS, ACTUALS: CCDA -FY15YTD
October 2014 - April 2015

TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET
Income
331000 Grant Revenues
331003 DYF 14-03 Mass Notification
331003a DTF 14-03 Admin Fees 4,794 4,784
Total 331003 DTF 14-02 Mass Notification 4,794 o 4,794 o
331004 Camp Blanding Grants 4] 0
3311004 DIG 14-Infrastucture 25,246 0 25248
3312004 DIG-14 Admin 5,708 0 5,708
Total 331004 Camp Blanding Grants 30,953 0 30,953 0
Total 331000 Grant Revenues 35,747 o 35,747 0
362000 Rents & Royalties 0] 0
362003 Tocoi Engineering He 4 558 5229 (673) 87.00 %
362005 Florida Fire Protection 7272 7,271 1 100.00 %
362007 Rent-Tomlinson & Co 670 4,690 (4.020) 14.00 %
362008 Rent Branch Agency Solutions LL 4020 4 020
Total 362000 Rents & Royalties 16,518 17,190 (672) 96.00 %
368000 Miscellaneous Revenues
361000 interest Earned 1,318 1,750 (432) 75.00 %
369002 Interestincome from CCC 1,367 1,345 22 102.00 %
368003 Commissions Earned 21 ¢ 21
369005 Miscellaneous Revenue 86 0 86
Total 369000 Miscellaneous Revenues 2,792 3,095 {303) 90.00 %
Total income $55,058 $20,285 $34,773 27100 %
Gross Profit $55,058 $20,285 $34,773 271.06%
Expenses
$12000 Fundingto CCC 175 {175)
512250 Funding to SBDC 5000 (5,000)
512500 Funding to CEDC 5,000 7.500 (2,500) 67.00 %
513300 Professional Fees
513310 Attorney 4,200 4,200 0 100.00 %
513320 Auditor 2,500 3,500 (1,000) 71.00 %
513321 Accounting 3,244 2,275 969 143.00 %
Total 513300 Professional Fees 9,944 9,975 {31) 100.00 %
5413305 Administration Contract IGS 31,500 31,500 0 100.00 %
513440 Liability Insurance
513443 Deveom Office 1,030 1,000 30 103.00 %
Total 513440 Liability Insurance 1,030 1,000 30 103.00%
513460 Devcom LLP Expense 11,650 11,550 0 10G.00 %
513480 Special Promotions 200 200
5134980 Business Meeting 175 (175)

Read Accountants Compitation Report



£13493 Service Charges
513494 Dues & Subscriptions
513510 Office and Operating Expenses
513512 Office Supplies
513514 Misc Office Expense
513516 Telephone
513817 Licenses & Fees
513518 Website expenses
513519 Travel
£13520 Conferences
513521 Advertising & Marketing
Total 513510 Office and Operating Expenses

559000 Grant Expense
559004 Camp Blanding

Total 559000 Grant Expense
580000 Contingencies / Legal

Total Expenses
Net Operating Income

Net Income

75 (75)
355 0 355
0 0
477 o 477
800 (800)
366 490 (124) 75.00 %
175 175 0 100.00 %
300 (300)
280 600 (320) 47.00 %
55 1,000 (945) 6.00 %
517 325 192 159.00 %
1,870 3,690 (1,820) 51.00 %
25246 0 25,246
25,246 0 25,246 0
2,975 (2,975)
$86,695  $73,615 $13,080 118.00 %
$(31,637)  $(53,330) $21,693 59.00 %
$(31,637) $(53,330) $21,693 59.00 %

Read Accountants Compitation Report



Clay County Development Authority

BUDGET VS, ACTUALS: CCDA -FY15YTD
QOctober 2014 - March 2015

TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OFBUDGET
income
331000 Grant Revenues
331003 DTF 14-03 Mass Notification
331003a DTF 14-03 Admin Fees 4,794 4,794
Total 331003 DTF 14-03 Mass Notification 4,794 ) 4,794 0
331004 Camp Blanding Grants 0 0
3311004 DIG 14-Infrastucture 25,246 0 25,248
3312004 DIG-14 Admin 5708 ¢ 5,708
Total 331004 Camp Blanding Grants 30,953 0 30,953 0
Total 331000 Grant Revenues 35,747 o 35,747 0
362000 Rents & Royalties ¢ 0
362003 Tocoi Engineering iic 3,886 4482 (596) 87.00 %
362005 Florida Fire Protection 6,211 8211 {0} 100.00 %
362007 Rent - Tomlinsen & Co 670 4,020 {3.350} 17.00 %
362008 Rent Branch Agency Solutions L.L 3,350 3,350
Total 362000 Rents & Royalties 14,117 14,713 (596) 96.00 %
369000 Miscelianeous Revenues
361000 Interest Earned 1,078 1,500 (422) 72.00 %
369002 Interest Income from CCC 9638 1,176 (208) 82.00 %
369003 Commissions Earned 21 ¢ 21
369005 Miscellaneous Revenue 86 0 86
Total 368000 Miscellaneous Revenues 2,152 2,676 (524) 80.00 %
Total Income $52,017 $17,389 $34,628 299.00 %
Gross Profit $52,017 $17,389 $34,628 299.00 %
Expenses
512000 Funding to CCC 150 (150)
512250 Funding to SBDC 5,000 (5.000)
512500 Funding to CEDC 5,000 5,000 0 10G.00 %
513300 Professional Fees
513310 Attorney 3,800 3,600 0 100.00 %
513320 Auditor 2,500 3,500 {1,000} 71.00 %
513321 Accounting 2,144 1,850 194 110.00 %
Total 513300 Professional Fees 8,244 8,050 (8086) 91.00 %
513305 Administration Contract IGS 27,000 27,000 0 100.00 %
£13440 Liability insurance
513443 Devcom Office 1,030 1,000 30 103.00 %
Total 513440 Liability Insurance 1,030 1,000 a0 403.00 %
513460 Devecom LLP Expense 9,800 9,800 0 100.00 %
513480 Special Promotions 200 200
513490 Business Meeting 150 {(150)

Read Accountants Compilation Report



513493 Service Charges
513494 Dues & Subscriptions
513510 Office and Operating Expenses
513512 Office Supplies
513514 Misc Office Expense
513516 Telephone
513517 Licenses & Fees
513518 Website expenses
513519 Travel
513520 Conferences
513521 Advertising & Marketing

Total 513510 Office and Operating Expenses

559000 Grant Expense
559004 Camp Blanding

Totat 559000 Grant Expense
560000 Contingencies / Legal
Totai Expenses

Net Operating Income

NetIncome

50 (50)
300 0 300
0 0
477 0 477
800 (800)
307 420 (113) 73.00 %
175 175 0 100.00 %
300 (300}
280 800 {320} 47.00 %
55 1,000 (945) 6.00 %
423 325 98 130.00 %
1,718 3,620 (1,902) 47.00 %
25,246 0 25246
25,246 0 25,246 0
2,550 (2,550)
$78,638  $63,470 $15,168 124.00 %
$ (26,620) $(46,081) $19,461 58.00 %
$ (26,620} $(46,081) $19,461 58.00 %

Read Accountanis Compilation Report



COLEMAN & ASSOCIATES

Ceitified Public Accounting Firm

ACCOUNTANTS' COMPILATION REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Clay County Development Authority
Orange Park, FL

We have compiled the accompanying government-wide balance sheet of Clay County
Development Authority (a governmental organization) as of May 31, 2015 and 2014, and the
related statements of revenues and expenses for the one month and eight months then ended,
and the accompanying supplementary statement of revenues and expenses — budget vs. actual
- current month and current year to date.

We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance about whether the financial statements are in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
for designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements.

Our responsibility is to conduct the compilation in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The objective of a compilation is to assist management in presenting financial information in the
form of financial statements without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there
are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements.

Management has elected to omit the management discussion and analysis, the governmental
fund financial statements and substantially all of the disclosures required by generally accepted
accounting principles. If the omitted management discussion and analysis, governmental fund
financial statements and disclosures were included in the financial statements, they might
influence the user’s conclusions about the Organization’s financial position and changes in net
assets. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed
about such matters.

We are not independent with respect to the Clay County Development Authority.

Coleman D Rssaciotes Cpﬂ Lem
June 8, 2015

P.O. Box 8279 - Fleming Island, Florida 32006 « (P} 904-284-9481  (F) 904-284-9482

www.colemanandassociatescpa.com




Clay County Development Authority

GOVERNMENTWIDE BALANCE SHEET
As of May 31, 2015

TOTAL

AS OF MAY 31, 2015 AS OF MAY 31, 2014 {(PY)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
100002 First Atlantic Checking ~ 1484 79,434 49 860
100004 First Atlantic (CD) 0 50,200
100005 First Atlantic 2 (CD) 0 49,998
100007 investment - Fiorida Prime - A 149,255 144,912
100008 Investment - Fiorida Prime - B ¢] 2,923
100010 Unrealized Gain/Loss Fund B 0 1,167
Total 100008 Investment - Florida Prime - B 0 4,090
100016 Compass Bank Money Market - Pub 175,402 175,344
100018 First Atlantic Bank MMKT -1493 1,094,265 968,140
100025 Fifth-Third CD 76,428 76,428
100026 Fifth-Third 2 (CD) 76,428 76,428
Total Bank Accounts $1,651,217 $1,595,402
Accounts Receivable
115002 Revenue Receivable 326,287 574
Total Accounts Receivable $326,287 $574
Other current assets
115000 Accrued Interest Receivable 755 755
115001 Loan to Clay Co. Chamber of Com 56,561 93,618
Total Other current assets $57,316 $94,370
Total Current Assets $2,034,820 $1,690,347
Fixed Assets
162950 |.easehold Improvements - Devcom 28,842 28,842
166900 Office Equipment 58,348 58,348
167900 Accum Depreciation (85,683) (85,583)
Total Fixed Assets $1,607 $1,607
Other Assets
1160000 Note Receivable - St Johns Coun 36,000 48,000
162900 Equity interest - Devcom 198,987 108,997
163000 License Agreement - Big League ¢ 450,000
Total Other Assets $234,997 $696,997
TOTAL ASSETS $2,271,423 $2,388,950
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
200000 Accounts Payable 0 3481
Total Accounts Payable %0 $3,481

Read Accountants' Compilation Report



Other Current Liabilities
220000 Security Deposits
Dept of Revenue Payable

Sales Tax Payable

Total Dept of Revenue Payable
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity
272000 Net Asset Balance
230000 Invest in Fixed Assets

32000 Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

2,788 2,788
168 8,612
0 {8.461)
168 151
$2,956 $2,939
$2,956 $6,420
$2,9586 $6,420
2,256 489 1,808,994
1,607 348,102
54 474 220,987
(44,103) (96,553)
$2,268,467 $2,382,530
$2,271,423 $2,388,950

Read Accountants' Compilation Report



Clay County Development Authority
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

May 2015
TOTAL
MAY 2015  QCT 2014 - MAY 2015 (YTD)
Income
331000 Grant Revenues 35,747
362000 Rents & Royalties 2,401 18,919
369000 Miscellaneous Revenues 603 3,395
Total income $3,004 $58,062
Gross Profit $3,004 $58,062
Expenses
512500 Funding to CEDC 5,000
513300 Professional Fees 5623 15,567
513305 Administration Contract iGS 4,500 35,000
513440 Liability Insurance 1,030
513460 Devcom LLP Expense 1,650 13,200
513480 Special Promotions 2,500 2,700
513491 Miscellaneous 0
513494 Dues & Subscriptions 355
513510 Office and Operating Expenses 1,197 3,066
£59000 Grant Expense 25246
Total Expenses $15,470 $102,164
Net Operating Income $ (12,4686) $ (44,103)
Net Income $(12,468) $ {44,103)

Read Accountants' Compilations Report



Clay County Development Authority

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

October 2014 - May 2015

TOTAL
OCT 2014 -MAY 2015 OCT 2013 -MAY 2014 (PY} CHANGE  OCT 2014 -MAY 2015 (YTD)
‘ncome

331000 Grant Revenues 35,747 35,747 35,747

362000 Rents & Royalties 18,81¢ 17,580 1,340 18,919

363000 Miscellaneous Revenues 3,385 8,656 (5,271} 3,395
Total Income 558,062 $26,245  $31,816 $58,062
Gross Profit $58,062 $26,245 $31,816 $58,062
Expenses

§12000 Funding to CCC 12,400 (12,400}

512500 Funding to CEDC 5,000 5,600 5,000

513300 Professional Fees 15,567 17,141 {1,574} 15.567

513305 Administration ContractiGS 36,000 27,000 9,000 36,000

513440 Liability Insurance 1930 992 38 1,030

513460 Devcom LLP Expense 13,200 13,200 0 13,200

513480 Special Promotions 2,700 2,700 2700

513491 Miscellaneous o] 0 0

5134923 Service Charges 85 (85)

513454 Dues & Subscriptions 355 2,059 (1.704) 355

513510 Office and Operating Expenses 3,068 3.620 {553) 3,066

513800 Community Development Project 46,301 (46,301)

589000 Grant Expense 25,248 25,246 25,246
Total Expenses $102,164 $122,799  §(20,834) $102,164
Net Operating Income $ (44,103) $ (96,553) $52,451 $ (44,103}
Nef income ${44,103) ${96,553) $582,451 $144,103)

Read Accountards' Compilation Report



Clay County Development Authority

BUDGET VS. ACTUALS: CCDA -FY15YTD
Gcetober 2014 - May 2015

TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET
income
331000 Grant Revenues
331003 DTF 14-03 Mass Notification
331003a DTF 14-03 Admin Fees 4,784 4,794
Total 331003 DTF 14-03 Mass Notification 4,794 0 4,794 0
331004 Camp Blanding Grants 0 0
3311004 DIG 14-Infrastucture 25,248 0 25,246
3312004 DIG-14 Admin 5708 0 5,708
Total 331004 Camp Blanding Grants 30,953 W) 30,953 0
Total 331000 Grant Revenues 35,747 0 35,747 (1]
362000 Rents & Royalties 0 ¢
362003 Tocoi Engineering e 5,226 5976 (750} 87.00 %
362005 Florida Fire Protection 8,333 8,332 £ 100.00 %
362007 Rent - Tomiinson & Co 670 5,360 {(4,680) 13.00 %
362008 Rentf Branch Agency Scolutions LL 4,690 4,680
Total 362000 Rents & Royalties 18,819 19,668 {749) 96.00 %
369000 Miscellaneous Revenues
361000 Interest Earned 1,740 2,000 {260) 87.00 %
369002 Interest Income from CCC 1,528 1,606 22 101.00 %
369003 Commissions Earned 25 0 25
369005 Miscellaneous Revenue 102 0 102
Total 369000 Miscellaneous Revenues 3,395 3,506 (111) 97_0(')' %
TotalIncome $58,062 $23,174 $34,888 251.00 %
Gross Profit $58,062  $23,174 $34,888 251.00 %
Expenses
512000 Funding to CCC 200 (200)
512250 Funding to SBDC 7,500 {7,500)
512500 Funding to CEDC 5,000 7,500 (2,500) 67.00 %
513300 Professional Fees
513310 Attorney 4,800 4,800 ¢ 100.00 %
513320 Auditor 7,523 4,600 2,923 164.00 %
513321 Accounting 3,244 2,600 644 125.00 %
Total 513300 Professional Fees 15,567 12,000 3,567 130.00 %
513305 Administration Contract IGS 36,000 36,000 0 100.00 %
513440 Liabllity Insurance
513443 Devcom Office 1,030 1,000 30 103.00 %
Total 513440 Liability Insurance 1,030 1,000 30 103.00 %
5134680 Devcom LLP Expense 13,200 13,200 0 100.00 %
513480 Special Promotions 2,700 2,700
513490 Business Meeting 200 {200}

Read Accountants' Compilation Report



513493 Service Charges
513494 Dues & Subscriptions
513510 Office and Operating Expenses
513512 Office Supplies
513514 Misc Office Expense
513516 Telephone
513517 Licenses & Fees
513518 Website expenses
513519 Travel
§13520 Conferences
513521 Advertising & Marketing

Total 513510 Office and Operating Expenses

559000 Grant Expense
559004 Camp Blanding

Total 559000 Grant Expense
560000 Contingencies / Legal
Total Expenses

Net Operating income

Net Income

75 (75)

355 750 (395) 47.00 %
0 0
477 0 477

98 800 (702) 12.00 %

424 560 (136) 76.00 %

175 175 ) 100.00 %

873 300 573 291.00 %

389 600 211) 65.00 %

55 1,000 (945) 8.00 %

575 325 250 177.00 %

3,066 3,760 (694) 82,00 %
25,246 0 25246

25,246 0 25,246 0
3,400 (3,400)

$102,164  $85,585 $16,579 119.00 %

$ (44,103)  $(62,411) $18,308 71.00 %

$(44,103)  $(62,411) $18,308 71.00 %

Read Accountants' Compilation Report



Clay County Development Authority
BUDGET VS. ACTUALS: CCDA -FY15- LAST MONTH

May 2015
TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET OVERBUDGET % OFBUDGET
income
362000 Rents & Royalties
362003 Tocol Engineering fic 870 747 (77) 90.00 %
362005 Florida Fire Protection 1,061 1,061 {0) 100.00 %
362007 Rent - Tomlinson & Co 670 (870)
362068 Rent Branch Agency Solutions LL 670 670
Total 362000 Rents & Royalties 2,401 2,478 {77) 897.00 %
369000 Misceflaneous Revenues
361000 Interest Earned 421 250 171 169.00 %
369002 Interest Income from CCC 161 161 c 100.00 %
369003 Commissions Earned 4 0 4
369005 Miscellaneous Revenue 16 0 16
Total 3690008 Miscellaneous Revenues 603 411 192 147.00 %
Totalincome $3,004 $2,889 $115 104.00 %
Gross Profit $3,004 $2,889 $115 104.00 %
Expenses
512000 Funding to CCC 25 (25}
512250 Funding to SBDC 2,500 (2,500}
513300 Professional Fees
513310 Attorney 600 600 0 100.00 %
513320 Auditor 5023 1,100 3,823 457.00 %
513321 Accounting 325 (325)
Total 513300 Professional Fees 5623 2,028 3,598 278.00 %
513305 Administration Contract IGS 4,500 4500 G 100.00 %
513460 Devcom LLP Expense 1,650 1,650 G 100.00 %
513480 Special Promotions 2,500 2,500
513490 Business Meeting 25 (25)
513494 Dues & Subscriptions 750 (750)
513510 Office and Operating Expenses 0 0
513614 Misc Office Expense 98 G a8
513516 Telephone 59 70 {11 84,00 %
513518 Website expenses 873 0 873
513519 Travel 108 0 108
513521 Advertising & Marketing 58 0 58
Total 513510 Office and Operating Expenses 1,197 70 1,127 1,710.00 %
560000 Contingencies / Legal 425 (425)
Total Expenses $15,470 $11,870 $3,500 129.00 %
Net Operating Income $(12,466) $(8,081) $ (3,385) 137.00 %
Net income $ (12,466} $(9,081) $(3,385) 137.00 %

Read Accountants' Compilation Report



COLEMAN & ASSOCIATES

Centified Public Accounting Firm

December 1, 2013

Josh Cockrell, 1GS

Clay County Development Authority
1734 Kingsiey Ave

Orange Park, FL 32073

Dear Josh;

This letter is to confirm our understanding of the terms and objectives of our engagement and the nature and
limitations of the services we will provide to the Clay County Development Authority (the CCDA).

We will perform the following services:

1) We will compile, from information you provide, the monthly statements of government-wide balance sheet
and the related statements of revenues and expenses of the Clay County Development Authority (a
governmental organization) for the month and year to date ending December 31, 2013 and each month
thereafter through the month ended September 30, 2016. We will also compile the supplementary
schedule of revenues and expenses — budget ta actual — current month and current year to date.

We will compile the financial statements and issue an accountant’s report thereon in accordance with
Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The objective of a compilation is to present in the form of financial statements,
information that is the representation of management without undertaking to express any assurance on the
financial statements.

The objective of a compilation is to assist you in presenting financial information in the form of financial
statements. We will utilize information that is your representation without undertaking to obtain or provide
any assurance that there are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements in
order for the statements to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

A compilation differs significantly from a review or an audit of financial statements. A compilation does not
contemplate performing inquiry, analytical procedures, or other procedures performed in a review.
Additionally, a compilation does not contemplate obtaining an understanding of the organization’s internal
control; assessing fraud risk; tests of accounting records by obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence
through inspection, observation, confirmation, or the examination of source documents {for example,
cancelled checks or bank images); or other procedures ordinarily performed in an audit. Therefore, a
compilation does not provide a basis for expressing any level of assurance on the financial statements being
compiled.

If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the compilations of your financial statements, we will not issue
reports on such statements as a result of this engagement.

P.O. Box 8279 - Fleming island, Florida 32006 » (P} 904-284-9481 « (F) 004-284-9482

www.colemanandassociatescpa.com




Clay County Development Authority Page Two
December 1, 2013

2} We will also handle the QuickBooks accounting and pay bills that have been approved and submitted for
payment by the CCDA Administrator. We will assist the CCDA on a weekly basis in handling the accounting
for the CCDA. We will reconcile all CCDA bank accounts monthly to ensure that all banking transactions
have been recorded. We will also provide other bookkeeping functions as agreed to and with the CCDA
Administrator.

Our engagement cannot be relied upon to disclose errors, fraud, or illegal acts that may exist, However, we will
inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors and any evidence or information that comes
to our attention during the performance of our bookkeeping and compilation procedures that fraud may have
occurred. in addition, we will report to you any evidence or information that comes to our attention during the
performance of our compilation procedures regarding illegal acts that may have occurred, unless they are clearly
inconsequential. We have no responsibility to identify and communicate deficiencies in your internal control as
part of this engagement.

The CCDA is responsibie for making alt management decisions and performing all management functions and for
designating an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee any bookkeeping services, tax
services, or other services we provide, The CCDA is responsible for evaluating the adequacy and results of the
services performed and accepting responsibility for such services.

The CCDA is also responsible for designing, establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements, including monitoring ongoing activities. The CCDA is responsible for
preventing and detecting fraud, the selection and application of accounting principles and identifying and
ensuring that the Organization complies with laws and regulations applicable to its activities.

We will conduct our compilation in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Timothy Coleman, CPA is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising and managing the
engagement and signing the report(s). Our fees for these services will be 5225 each month from December 1,
2013 through September 2016. Our fees for additional services such as making bank deposits and assisting the
auditor with the financial statements and MD&A will be based on standard hourly rates. The fee estimate is
based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will
not be encountered during the work performed. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with
you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. Our invoices for these fees will be
rendered each month and are payable on presentation,

This contract is cancellable by either party at any time, however, it is expected that a thirty-day notice is
provided, if possible.



Clay County Development Authority Page Three
December 1, 2013

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the
significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms
of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.

Sincerely,

Colran B Fssociates Cpa Qi

Coleman and Associates, CPA Firm

Acknowledged:
Clay County Development Authority

Administrator



CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

1734 KINGSLEY AVENUE
ORANGE PARK, FL 32073

Development Authority

Growing Business o

5-YEAR
STRATEGIC VISION PLAN

2015 - 2020



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION BY THE CHAIRMAN .....ociiiiiiiiiiiiimiiinie e rssessestesacsvenne s e sae s smtst st amsss st e sasestem s eanneneeaen 3
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY Lottt s et sre et e sne e e s sas et e easeseenssas st et tonsarsensassss st eseeemsamteneeeneeearn 4
HISTORY OF CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY oot ses s s b s st s st e en 5
CCDA TN PAST YBAIS 1ottt nee s e vt b s s b st eb s de b et et banabrnssasasmesssesenrasarsasesnens 5
CODA TOOBY ittt ettt b et s e sene et e s essena e b ed e sastedbeanses et taetatenecaseennase 5

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STAFF......coiremnicnicieeeisrre e e sese e easrareanere et a b e skt oRes e rae e 6

ORGANIZATIORAL TENETS Lottt et ces s sesr e aassaaans
VISIOTE STATRIMENT ..ottt et st 4865304900 e s e sb et e st eaeebeaoseeassesstsaa st ensstenbeeneeens 7
Mission Statement ..o
Statement of Core Values

SWOT ANALYSIS
Strengths
OPPOrtUNItIES .ocveeevereeceecvesereenreane

GOALS AND OBIECTIVES

CCDA Strategic Vision Plan, 2015 - 2020 Page |2



INTRODUCTION BY THE CHAIRMAN

The Clay County Development Authority (“CCDA”} Strategic Plan, 2015 — 2020 which follows is the resuit
of hard work put forth by CCDA’s Board of Directors and the input and guidance of CCDA's staff. In the
fall of 2014, CCDA initiated the process of developing a strategic vision plan that will be used as a guiding
document for the organization to follow and implement in accordance with its mission. This process
consisted of one-on-one interviews with each board member to capture their perceptions of the
strengths, weakness, opportunities, and threats of the organization as well as public meetings in which
CCDA Board of Directors met to establish sound goals for organizational sustainability both long-term
and short-term and discussed innovative concepts to further enrich economlc development
opportunities in Clay County,

I would like to thank my fellow board members for the selfless contribution of their time and talents
that have made this organization a vital resource ta our commumty In addition, | want to express my
deep gratification towards the staff, Josh Cockrell and: Kern Stewart that have reorganlzed CCDAto a
leve} of maximum efficiency and chartered a course for us to follow. :

Chip Dobson, Chairman 2014-2015

CCDA Strategic Vision Plan, 2015 — 2020 Page |3



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

First t would like to thank Clay County Development Authority’'s Board of Directors for their commitment
to this planning process, for their patience and good humor, for their confidence in my abilities, and for
their fortitude in seeing it through to the end. The board is truly the most talented group of individuals
deriving from various professional and cultural backgrounds that | have ever had the privilege of
working with. The melting pot of knowledge that the board continues to devote to the community will
without certain, enhance Clay County’s competitive advantage in retaining and expanding small
businesses as well as attracting new industries.

Undergoing a strategic planning process is daunting, time consumfhg", and challenging. However, it is
essential in order to keep an organization on track over time; Most nmportantly, it aliows the
organization to respond to change while remaining falthfui toits mission and vision. The opportunity to
step back and provide constructive criticism and msxght is crucial, and not afforded by the daily pace of
this organization. The hard work placed into this doc ment will serve as a roadmap for CCDA to foliow,

As Clay County Development Authority approaches |ts 60" anniversary, the future of this organization is
stilted on turning Clay County’'s weaknesses into strengths and ;mp!ementmg the goals and objectives
outlined in the latter part of this document i

Josh Cockrell, Executive Administrator

CCDA Strategic Vision Plan, 2015 - 2020 Page |4



HISTORY OF CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

The Clay County Development Authority (“CCDA”) was established by a special act of the Florida
Legislature in 1957 for the principal purpose of promoting sound economic development of Clay County.
They are a strategic partner with the Clay Economic Development Corporation, Clay County Chamber of
Commerce, numerous businesses and other local, regional and state agencies to improve the quality of
life for residents. The members of CCDA are appointed by the Governor and serve four-year terms.

CCDA in Past Years
in the early years, CCDA received approximately 520,000 per year.from monies generated from timber
and mineral leases from Camp Blanding, known as Armory Board }-unds However, that was terminated
in 1972 and thanks to the foresight and expertise of the early. members of the Authority, frugal financial
investments are the Authority’s major source of funding. The Authonty has a long history of supporting
economic development throughout Clay County and has assnsted many employers to establish
operations throughout Orange Park, Green Cove Spnngs Fieming island, unmcorporated Middieburg,
Oakleaf Plantation areas and Keystone Heights. *

From 2003-2013, CCDA worked with Clay County Chamber of Commerce in formlng a ‘public-private
partnership to increase Clay County’s economic prosperity;. quairty of life and future sustamabahty This
partnership maximized and leveraged resources and formed a coitaboratlve approach to implementing
Focus on the Future, the countywide strategfc' pian for economic. deveiopment Moreover, the
organizations worked closely with key community stakeholcfers other. regional and statewide
organizations as well as with. govemmentai leaders to advance programs and capabilities to diversify
and strengthen the local: economy : : i :

During this period, CCDA worked in um'son with the Econom:c Development Advisory Board of the Clay
County Chamber of Commerce, who, mo tored current trends in the business atmosphere of the county
v:dmg the long—term vus;on

CCDA Today 3
In 2014, the Economic Development Adwsor_y Board of the Clay County Chamber of Commerce, Clay
County Chamber of Commerce, and:CCDA were reorganized to maximize efficiencies and better
approach economic development ef‘Forts to benefit Clay County. Through this reorganization effort, Clay
Economic Development. Corporatxon (”CCEDC”) emerged and since has served in addition to Clay County
Chamber of Commerce asa strong partner to CCDA. Today, CCDA serves the community by supporting
and promoting the economtc.d_e_veiopment efforts of its partners by providing unigue financing tools
such as issuing industrial revenue bonds and financing projects that generate positive economic impacts
in Clay County.

CCDA Strategic Vision Plan, 2015 — 2020 Page |5



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STAFF

Chairman
Chip Dobson

Vice-Chairman ) Secretary
Rev. William Randall <o Virginia Hall

Treasurer _ooep . Past Chairman
Matt Carlton - . Debbie Ricks

Difec?pt_'_
Russell Buck.

@ .. Director
+ . GregClary

Dlrecto
Joe Mobley -
Paz Patel

* Director .
Matt Welch

" General Counsel
Grady Williams

' Executive Administrators
Josh Cockrell
Kerri Stewart

CCDA Strategic Vision Plan, 2015 - 2020

Page |6



ORGANIZATIONAL TENETS

Vision Statement

Our vision is to support, promote, and facilitate economic development in Clay County, Florida.

Mission Statement

Clay County Development Authority supports, promotes, and at-t'ra_ ts economic development while
serving as the lead public development finance agency in Clay County, Florida, partnering with new and
existing businesses, non-profit organizations, faith-based communities; and government entities.

Statement of Core Values

Since our establishment in 1957, our core values have been the guudlng principles that have dictated and
influenced our success. They are the reason why our board members have humbly volunteered their
time and talents to better serve the communlty - e

Leadership S i
With the gubernatorial appomtment authorlty to lead co rageously, the creattwty to inspire, and the
ability to foster posmve economlc change in Clay: County, we will take charge in areas where others
cannot. TR : :

Commitment... : i
We are passic nateiy commltted
busmesses in Clay County. '_

_ m:proving"itﬁé f_e_cqnétﬁit growth prosperity of the citizens and

Community’ . :
We are caring res:dents and nelghbors mvofved in community activities in meaningful ways, and
committed to the- prospenty of Ciay County

Cooperation & Collaboratlon
We believe that by working: together in both the public and privates sectors, obstacles are limited and
success is limitless.

integrity

We are committed to the highest sense of integrity and transparency encompassing every aspect of our
behavior as citizens of Clay County. We strive for high moral character, honor, respect and honesty in all
our actions realizing that the strength of our board is based on the integrity of its members and placing
the best interests of Clay County before our own,

CCDA Strategic Vision Plan, 2015~ 2020 Page |7



SWOT ANALYSIS

Staff conducted individual interviews with each board member to gain a comprehensive understanding
of the board members’ perceptions as to what the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats of
the organization are. Board members were asked to be forthright with their observations with an
understanding that all comments provided will remain anonymous.

Strengths

Quality of Life

Located outside of the bustling city of Jacksonville, FL and on the edge of rurality, Clay County citizens
benefit from the mild climate and a quality of life that many could nly dream of having. County
Commissioners, county administration and staff, and the econom&c.development partners in Clay County
work tirelessly to ensure that citizens have access to a good pubiec school system, pristine parks,
recreation, a multitude of events at the Clay County Falrgrounds and access to waterways such as the
St. Johns River, Black Creek, and Doctors Lake; and, they fight to ensure that pubisc safetyisa top
priority so that citizens benefit from the low crime raté In addition, Clay County: is a strong political
community that puts family values first, Sidewalk nelghborhoods with commumty amemty centers and
open spaces are indicative of Clay Count\,r s family frlendiy enwronment Y

Land Development :
Clay County is situated along 1-295 W{th easy access to I-10, I 95 and the outer beltway that is under
development. Access to muiti-modal transportat:on is.available mcludtng rail, nearby JaxPort and
Jacksonville International Airport. Clay County also boasts 'he__-benefats of. -nearby Cecil Field and Cecil
Commerce Center. Clay. County is attractlve to deveiopers due'to: the swath of land/greenfield sites
available for development that is mexpens:ve relative to. nekghbormg markets and that is not impeded
by any natural enwronments such as swampland Also developers are attracted to Clay County because
of the moratorium on impac "f esand competitive utn[l_ty services available through Clay County Utility
Author;ty

Clay County has a diverse economy, a Iow tax rate, and low unemployment. The presence of NAS Jax
brings forth strong military and cnwllan economtc impact to the area. In addition, there is growth in
several markets part;culariy in nursmg Clay County is amenable to incentives and attracting diverse
businesses. in addit;on, busmesses can benefit from CCDA’s competitive bond issuance fees when
pursuing bond fmancmg

Resources :
Clay County boasts a seasoned sk|lled workforce and retired military that provides industry competition
in the region. The growing medical community such as the presence of St. Vincent’s HealthCare and
Orange Park Medical Center makes Clay County attractive for skilled labor. In addition, Clay County is
home to a readily available workforce. The proximity of Cecil Field and Cecil Commerce Center provide
Clay County with a competitive industry advantage with neighboring counties. Clay County Agriculture
Center is home to unique programs for the citizens of Clay County such as research-based education
programs in agricuiture, horticulture, family and consumer science and 4-H/youth development. Camp
Bianding Joint Training Center is a critically vital training center that annually trains over 325,000 Florida
National Guard troops as well as local, state, and federa! law enforcement agencies from around the
country.

CCDA Strategic Vision Plan, 2015 -2020 Page |8



Opportunities

Upon initial review of the weaknesses and threats perceived, opportunities became prevalent and were
established by CCDA’s board members in which the CCDA can proactively pursue to provide greater
strength to economic development efforts in Clay County. They are as follows:

Identify short-term and long-term opportunities that will yield financial sustainability to the
organization.

Proactively seek bond issuances and refinance opportunities.

Serve as an information and education resource for industrial and manufacturing businesses.
Proactively advocate a legislative policy agenda on the iocal and state ievel that will support
economic development efforts. =
Serve as an idea clearinghouse to spur new projects,
Capitalize on opportunities generated by the growin ‘medical community
Cultivate stronger relationships with Enterprise F!or;da to provude support for smali and
minority-owned businesses. . G

Promote and invest in start-up businesses and accelerators .
Invest in projects such as Big League Dreams that will prowde substanttai economlc impacts to
Clay County. i .
Develap stronger partnerships between Iocal governments educatlon mstltutaons and
husinesses in Clay County.
Have greater collaboration with’ munzc’upahnes in the county and Clay County Board of County
Commissioners by educating elected ofﬁcna!s and staff on'what CCDA provides to the
community and the benefits of mdustrsal revenue ‘bonds (tRBs)

Collaborate with Ciav Economlc DeveIOpment Corporatlon Clay County Chamber of Commerce,
and Clay County Board of County Commlssuoners on economic development opportunities.
Strengthen our relattonshlp w;th Camp Bl ing Joint Training Center to further support their
needs. ; i

CCDA Strategic Vision Plan, 2015 - 2020 Page {9



GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

OBJECTIVES_ o

0UYPUTS/STRATEG|E5 o

Identify opportunities that will yield -
financial sustainability solutions

: i{Smos-Zyrs) '

: fLong-Term

) Dlvest of DEVCOM

Short-Term

{Provide grant support forCamp Blandmg and coliect

assesed administration fees

{2 yrs - 5yrs) :

investment of cash into projects that support the
mission

 {ontime and capital investments

Investigate grant opportunities that will have a retumn

Short-Term & Long Term
{6 mos - 5 yrs)

implement findings determined in the 2015 Clay
County Economic Development Plan

IProvide Industrial Revenue Bond financing to existing
{non-profits in Clay County

Enhaﬂce marketabltty ami

. E"m'plemen_t:e_me_rkeféi_n_'g_;olan

: “iDevélopinformational pteces/pamphiets i
Update'the CCOAwebsite

“fco
__; generate bond awareness to new and exnstlng
Abusinedies i

'uct @ countyw1de targeted market g cam

i Bu;ld strongerrelatnonsh
|ndnndua|s and orgamzataons

i {Meet with local’ eEected offzcnaEs, com_ unity leaders
i and |ndustry !eaders 10 market CCDA's capab:htles

_wuth key._

; Atte nd/sponsor events around Ctey Countv that are
o related o our: rmsswn prov:de max_mum exposure to

el

= hthe orgamzatlon andthat have a réturh on mvestme nt

Appomt aboard’ memberto serve on Clay County
Economic Development Corporatson s Board:

o Attend conferences and webmars to-
I enhance boardknowledge o
- identify opportunities for board . ' o o

" development and education” .

SR !Fotoi;e-boéfd de'\}e'!opm:eni:-"-".

: CounuE of Deveiopment Fmance Agencnes (CDFA)

' _' Manufacturers Assocnatton of Florlda (MAF) and Fn"st
o Coast Manufacturer's Association (FCMA) '

- {JaxUsA |

{Florida Economic Development Councnr (FEDC)

2 identlfy hew members 1o serve on the board when A
o hvacancy octurs LI R S

-|conducta new member onentatnon for mcommg board
'mernbers : e .

_Serve as an idea clearinghouse for < -
projects seeking public financing

IRB issuances -

: {reverive bonds - .

Ident;fy and pursue pro;ects that can utilize mdustnai

e R didentif end. s proj t pe it i :
Financing through loans issued by CCDA entily pursue projects that positively impact (_:an

County, but require additional financing

Advocate a tegm!atwe po!icy agenda for
issues that affect economuc deveEopment
O in Clay County

“JTake a position on issues

Gam a better understandmg of the

State Issues: lnwte members of the Clay County o

Leg:slatwe Delegatton to provsde updates

ISSUES

- Hlocat. Jesues: Invite members of the Clay County BCC to
" iprovide updates’ : :

1Adopt résolutiang recognizing the Board's posmon

CCDA Strategic Vision Plan, 2015 - 2020

Page |10



